AGENDA: BEDFORD PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Organizational Meeting
July 6, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.
Bedford Central Library, Bedford Room
Call to Order
Approval of Agenda
Approval of the Minutes from the last meeting
Public Comments
Board Chair Report (Natalie Martin, Vice Chair)
e Elect officers for FY21
o Chairman
o Vice-Chairman
o Treasurer
e FY21 meeting calendar
Director's Report:
e Policies and Procedures
e Programming/Services
e IT
e Financials
Board Member Comments

New Business

Adjournment



Bedford Public Library System
Board of Trustees meeting Minutes
Bedford Central Library
June 1, 2021

Board members present: Natalie Martin, Randy Cox, Mary Jo Krufka, Hope Cupit, Debbie
Bahouth, Anna Stevens

Staff present: Jenny Novalis, Library Director
Ms. Krufka called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.

Mes. Krufka asked for additions or changes to the agenda. Mrs. Novalis requested to remove the
action item to appoint BPLS Foundation Board of Directors, saving that action for a future
meeting. Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to approve the agenda, as amended. Mrs. Cupit
motioned to approve the agenda, as amended, Mrs. Martin seconded, all agreed.

Ms. Krufka asked for any changes to the minutes from the April meeting. There were no
changes. Mrs. Martin motioned to approve the minutes as mailed, Mrs. Stevens seconded, all
agreed.

No Public Comments
No Board Chair report
Director’s report:

Mrs. Novalis presented the draft FY22 library operating budget. Bedford County has
appropriated $1,734,578.00 to the Library, State aid estimates are $199,566.00 and anticipated
revenues from other sources is $66,250. Mrs. Novalis noted that the revenue estimates from
other sources is a little lower due to the pandemic. Operating expenses are expected to remain
fairly level for contractual services, library programming needs, supplies, continuous charges and
property improvements. Personnel expenses include fringes and benefits plus a 5% COL pay
increase for the library employees, same as the County personnel will receive. That expense
makes up about 68% of the overall library operating budget. Library materials are funded
through the state aid allocation, and the library plans to purchase $167,566.00 in books, media
and digital materials. The Board discussed some of the materials figures and discussed the
personnel figures and minimum wage increases. Mrs. Novalis noted that there are two Library
projects on the County’s approved FY22 CIP — more HVAC replacements and “can light”
replacements. The Board discussed some ongoing building improvement needs. Ms. Krufka
asked if there was any more discussion on the budget action item; there was none. Ms. Krufka
asked for a motion to approve the FY22 library operating budget as presented. Mrs. Cupit
motioned to approve the operating budget, Mrs. Bahouth seconded, all agreed.

The VA Dept of Health released updated public library pandemic guidance and the Governor’s
Office has indicated many of the emergency restriction will be lifted on May 28. Mrs. Novalis
summarized the current operating restrictions and noted that the staff will continue to practice



enhanced cleaning procedures even after the emergency order is lifted. The Bedford Rotary
Club named Jenny Novalis a Paul Harris Fellow, Rotary’s highest honor for Service Above Self
for carrying out critical programming through the library system that strengthens children’s
literacy, and for continuing operations safely, during the last pandemic year. Mrs. Novalis noted
that the library staff really were the ones who kept the library running throughout the pandemic
and it was their willingness to adapt to the ever changing rules that allowed the library to thrive.

The security camera project has been delayed due to a shortage of microchips. Our vendor was
able to fill some of the order, and the most essential cameras have been installed at Forest and
Moneta. The IT staff hope to have the cameras in hand by the end of the calendar year, but it is
pretty much out of their hands, at the moment. All the wiring is already in place, so once they
arrive, installation should only take a few days.

Erate paperwork for the FY22 category 1 services has been filed, there was no need for a bid
process since we are still in a contract with our current vendor. USAC has sent a commitment
letter for $41,790.00 and there are no plans for any category 2 projects this coming year. Mrs.
Novalis reviewed the current operating budget revenues and expenses, including Munis reports
from March, April and May 2021 expenses. The May revenue reports are a little delayed due to
our current workflow. Mrs. Novalis also reported on the progress of the HVAC projects and
mold remediation/repair projects.

Board Member Comments:

Mrs. Cupit thanked the staff for making and sending the Summer Reading Program flyer around.
The Board had a discussion about how important summer reading program is and they should be
proud of the work. Mrs. Stevens noted that considering the BPLS is the only area library doing a
full summer program and had been doing a program, that is an even better accomplishment. Mrs.
Bahouth stated Jenny and the staff really pulled through and kept the library operating safely, we
hope the community knows how fortunate we are to have this library system. Mr. Cox added
that the staff really pulled through and our library stood much taller and a lot shinier than other
libraries in the area. Mrs. Martin noted that Bedford really hung in there when others didn’t and
suggested they write a letter to the editor. She also stated that the Bedford Friend of the
Library’s book sales and puzzles sales were big hits. They received a lot of large donations
during the pandemic. Ms. Krufka agreed with everything already stated. She summarized the
issue the Forest Library had with anti-Northam demonstrators in May and noted that the staff
handled it well and they now have clarification on what to do if this happens again. She added
that this was her last Library Board meeting, as her term is expiring. She has very much enjoyed
being on the Board and will miss being here, she has been a part of the Board for a long time.
The Board thanked Ms. Krufka and Mrs. Markham for their service on the Board and Mrs.
Novalis presented them with small awards.

Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to adjourn. Mrs. Bahouth motioned, Mrs. Martin seconded, all
agreed. The meeting adjourned at 6:10pm.



Randy Cox
2032 Tolley Meadow Rd.
Big Island, VA 24526

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 5)

BEDFORD PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM

Library Board of Trustees
(July 1, 2021 — June 30, 2022)

Term 2 ends

: June 30, 2024

Home: 704-433-8012
randycoxart@aol.com

Kathryn Lewis
1098 Cypress P1
Bedford, VA 24523

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 5)

Term 1 ends

: June 30, 2025

Home: 434-222-4122
kathrynlewisva@gmail.com

Hope Cupit
1119 AP Hill PL
Forest, VA 24551

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 3)

Term 1 ends

: June 30, 2024

Home: 434-525-0116
hcupit@sercap.org
heupit@icloud.com

Debra Bahouth
3287 0Old Firetrail Rd.
Huddleston, VA 24104

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 2)

Term 2 ends

: June 30, 2023

Home: 336-972-3105
hiddenbearhill@gmail.com

Pamela Palmer Term 1 ends: June 30, 2025 Home: 540-929-1987

1181 Old Plantation Rd. pamela.palmer929@gmail.com
Goodview, VA 24095

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 1)

Natalie Martin Term 1 ends: June 30, 2023 Home: 540-586-5765

1728 Wycliffe St. martinnataliek@gmail.com
Bedford, VA 24523

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 7)

Anna Stevens Term 1 ends: June 30, 2024 Home: 540-520-5386

1012 Gardener’s Ln
Montvale, VA 24122

(At-Large; lives in Dist. 6)

annastevens86@gmail.com

updated July 1, 2021




July 6, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.

Meeting Room

Director's Report:

e Policies and Procedures
o Holiday policy — staff request for Thursday December 23, 2021 and
Saturday January 1, 2022. The BPLS typically follows the state calendar
for all holidays, these are exceptions to the calendar.

e Programming/Services
o Programming update
o New LVA databases available

e |IT
o New funding opportunities - ECF vs. E-rate vs. EBB discussion

e Financials
o FY2020 audit has been completed. Link will be sent.
End of May revenues and expenses review
Partial end of June financial review
State Aid paperwork for FY22 has been filed
State ARPA/IMLS Funds distribution has been announced. The BPLS is
expected to receive $25,162.00. Review staff recommendations for
spending these project funds and other requirements of the grant.

C 0 O O



Commonwealth of Virginia

2021 Pay and Holiday Calendar
Revised October 2020

State Holidays January February March
January 1 SMTWTTFS SMTWTTES S MTWTF S

New Year’s Day

January 18 2 5 34 5 6
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day @ 2 3 456

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
Febrancds 345 67 89 5 8 9 90111213
eorge Washington Day 10 11 12 13 14 [i5] 16 14 15 f16|17 18 19 20
May 31 14 (®)[ig] 17 18 19 20
Memorial Da 17 19 20 21 22 23
y ol 22 23 24 25 26 37 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

j_unet 18 e . 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

uneteen serve 28 29 30 P
July 5 31 28

Independence Day (Observed)
September 6

Labor Day April May June

October 11

Columbus Day & Yorktown .
Victory Day S MTW T F § S M TW T F § S MTWT F S
glovimb;rz 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5

ection Day

November 11 4 5 67 8 910 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 1112
Veterans Day 9 10 11 12 13 [i4 15

November 24 11 12 13 14 15 [ig] 17 14 13 14 15 fie] 17 @19
4 hours additional holiday time 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 N
November 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
Thanksgivin

Novem%er 296 25 26 27 28 29 @ 30 @ 2 25 £330

Day After Thanksgiving

December 23

8 hours additional holiday time July August September
December 24

Christmas (Observed) . .

December 31 SMT W T F S S M TWTF S§ S M TW T F S
New Year’s (Observed) 1 2
Eleadse not:: In some agencies, the 23 1.2 3 4 5 67 3 4
oliday and payday schedule may
varyfr%mwhatyisghownhere.lf 4 @ 6 7 8 910 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 @ 7 8 9101
ou have questions, see your
zgencyhumanresourcesofﬁcer. 11 12 13 14 15 17 15 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 17 18
Denotes Payday D 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
Denotes Holiday () 25 26 27 28 29 B0l 31 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 fq]
Denotes Additional 3 oo
Time Off Bhrs 7]
Denotes Payday on October November December
Holiday or %mg Off
Published by the Virginia Depart- SMTWTF S SMT W TTTF S SMTWTTF S
ment of Human Resource: Manage- 1 2
renr.ent.AnequaI opportunity employ- : @ 3 4 5 6 2 3 4

3 4 5 6 7 8
Published by Commonweaith of 7 8 9 10@12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Virginia October 2020 10 @ 12 13 14 16 -
14 15 fie} 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 [i6]17 18
dhrm 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

04 25 26 27 28 29 30 21 22 2324:@) €927 19 20 21 2223 (%) 25
St 31 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30

HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT



Commonwealth of Virginia

2022 Pay and Holiday Calendar

State Holidays

January 17
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

Eebruary 21

George Washington Day
May 30

Memorial Day

June 20

Juneteenth (Observed)

July 4
Independence Day

September 5

Labor Day

October 10

Columbus Day & Yorktown
Victory Day

November 8

Election Day

November 11

Veterans Day

November 23

4 hours additional holiday time
November 24

Thanksgiving

November 25

Day After Thanksgiving
December 23

8 hours additional holiday time
December 26

Christmas (Observed)

Please note: In some agencies, the
hotiday and payday schedule may
vary from what is shown here. If
you have questions, see your
agency human resources officer.

Denotes Payday I:l
Denotes Holiday O

Denotes Additional ',
Time Off Bhrs 4 hrs

Denotes Payday on

Holiday or Time Off

Published by the Virginia Depart-
ment of Human Resource Manage-
ment. An equal opportunity employ-
er.

Published by Commonwealth of
Virginia April 2021

dhrm

Virginia Department of
HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

January
S M T W

2 3 4 5
9 10 11 12

16 7 18 19

23 24 25 26
30 31

April

S MTW

3 4 5 6
10 11 12 13
17 18 19 20
24 25 26 27

July
SMT W

3 @5 6
10 11 12 13
17 18 19 20
24 25 26 27
31

October

SMTW

2 3 45
9 {0) 11 12
16 17 18 19
23 24 25 26
30 31

13
20
27

14
21
28

13
20
27

F S
1
7 8

15
21 22
28 29

F S

8 9

[15] 16

22 23
29 30

F S

7 8

[14] 15

21 22

28 29

February

SMTWT F S
]2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 1011 12
13 14 15 fi6] 17 18 19
20 G1) 22 23 24 25 26
27 28

May

S MTWTF S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 6] 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 (0) 31

August

S M TW T F S

]2 3 4 5 ¢
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 [6] 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

November

SMT W T F S

[1]2 3 4 5
6 7 ® 9 10 (D12

13 14 15 [6]17 18 19

20 21 22 23:24) @5) 26

27 28 29 30

March

S M T WT F S
]2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30

June

SMTWT FS
]2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 1011
12 13 14 15 [6] 17 18
19 @0) 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

September

SMTWTF S

1] 2 3
4 6G)6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 [6]17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 Bo]

December

SMTWTTF S

1] 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 g 17
18 19 20 21 22 23:24

25 €6) 27 28 29 [30] 31



COMPARISON SHEET FOR E-RATE, EMERGENCY CONNECTIVITY FUND, AND

EMERGENCY BROADBAND BENEFIT PROGRAMS

E-RATE PROGRAM
(SCHOOLS & LIBRARIES)

EMERGENCY CONNECTIVITY
FUND PROGRAM

EMERGENCY BROADBAND
BENEFIT PROGRAM

Who: Schools, libraries, consortia of
schools, & libraries

What: $4.15B annual available collected
by the FCC through Universal Service
Fund contributions. Entities file annually
for reimbursements for:

Telecommunications services;
Internet access;

Internal connections;

Basic maintenance of internal con-
nections;

¢ Managed internal broadband ser-
vices

Discounts for support depend on the
level of poverty and whether the school
or library is located in an urban or rural
area. Discounts range from 20% to 90%
of the costs of eligible services.

When: Annually. The Form 471 Filing
Window historically opens in January and
closes in March, in advance of each
Funding Year, which starts July 1 through
June 30.

How: Applicants must competitively bid
all E-rate equipment and services via FCC
Form 470 and complete a minimum 28
day bidding period.

All forms are submitted in USAC’s One
Portal environment, predominantly in
the E-rate Productivity Center (EPC) Por-
tal.

l ' iE—RATE CENTRAL

\ ] —Simplifying E-rate —

Who: Schools, libraries, consortia of
schools & libraries

What: $7.17B emergency program
to help libraries close the Homework
Gap by funding reasonable costs of
purchases of devices and connectivi-
ty for off-campus use by library pa-
trons in need during the COVID-19
pandemic. Entities receive 100% re-
imbursement for:

Wi-Fi hotspots;

Modems (including air cards);

Routers;

Devices that combine a modem

and router;

e connhected devices (laptop and
tablet computers);

e Off-campus commercially availa-

ble broadband service that pro-

vides a fixed or mobile broad-

band connection for library pa-

trons

When: The first application filing
window will open June/July 2021 and
will be open for 45 days. Applicants
will be able to submit requests for
funding for purchases made between
July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022 to
meet the needs of students, school
staff, and library patrons who would
otherwise lack access to basic educa-
tional opportunities and library ser-
vices.

How: Applicants must certify they
followed state and local procure-
ment requirements in procuring ECF
eligible goods and services.

All forms are submitted in USAC's
One Portal environment, predomi-
nantly in the E-rate Productivity Cen-
ter (EPC) Portal.

Who: A household is eligible if a mem-
ber of the household meets one of the
following criteria:

e Has an income that is at or below
135% of the Federal Poverty Guide-
lines or participates in certain assis-
tance programs, such as SNAP, Medi-
caid, or Lifeline;

e Approved to receive benefits under
the free and reduced price school
lunch program or the school break-
fast program, including through the
USDA Community Eligibility Provision
in the 2019-2020 or 2020-2021
school year;

e Received a Federal Pell Grant during
the current award year;

e Experienced a substantial loss of in-
come due to job loss or furlough
since February 29, 2020 and the
household had a total income in
2020 at or below $99,000 for single
filers and $198,000 for joint filers;

e Meets the eligibility criteria for a
participating provider’s existing low-
income or COVID-19 program

What: The Emergency Broadband Bene-
fit will provide a discount of up to $50
per month towards broadband service
for eligible households and up to $75 per
month for households on qualifying Trib-
al lands. Eligible households can also re-
ceive a one-time discount of up to $100
to purchase a laptop, desktop computer,
or tablet from participating providers if
they contribute more than $10 and less
than $50 toward the purchase price. The
Emergency Broadband Benefit is limited
to one monthly service discount and one
device discount per household.

https://www.fcc.gov/general/e-rate-schools-libraries-usf-program

https://www.fcc.gov/emergency-connectivity-fund

https://www.fcc.gov/emergency-broadband-benefit-program




04 LNHWHDOVTIAHY HTOIHHA A¥VIEIT €071

%e°¢s 88 T¥6 '¥T6- 89'L86°6- Z1°60L°%00 T~ 00°TS9 ‘616 T- 00" 159616 ‘T-
QNN DNILVIHJO AIVIdIT TYLOL
%e°6¢ 00506 °LZT- 00°0 00°088°2S- 00°S8L‘08T- 00°S8L‘08T-
IV AYVddITl HIVLS TOLPCY
30" 00°000€- 00°0 00°0 00°000"€- 007000 €~
YYILSIDHY SLSOD DHY dITT €TLETY
%30°00T 99°09L 00°0 95°09L- 0070 00°0
SYAIJOD SLS0D Odd €I CTIL6TV
%$0°00T 05°Z¥E‘TE 00°0 0S"ZPE TE- 00°0 00°0
HI¥E 3 SLSOD DdY dIT TTIL6TV
%0° 00000 ‘¥- 000 00°0 00°000 "%~ 00°000 ‘¥~
YIHLO - SLSOD UHYHAODHY 0T06T¥
%0°00T TT°¥%8'% 6C°S- TT°¥%8 ¥~ 00°0 00°0
SANNAHY NV SHLVEHY €068T17%
%6°1C 0T"295‘T- S0°60T- 06" LEF- 0070002~ 00°000°‘C-
SNOANVTTHDSIN AYVILIT 66L8TH
%0°00T 00°0 00°000°L- 00°000°L- 00°000"L- 00°000°L-
aNNOA HITVHH WWOD ad AYVAdIT SLLBTV
%1°8S9 9% L9T- gcree- vacee- 00°00%- 00°00%-
SNOLLVNOJ AYVILIT PLLBTY
%18 S9°TZ¢t- ce° 8- Se°8¢- 00°0GE- 00°09¢-
HDVLS0d AYVILIT TLLBTY
%$C° LT FI°GSS ' P1- ¥y 01T 1- 98 " ¥¥¥ ‘G- 00°000°0C- 00" 00002~
SHIJOD AJVILIT TLLBTY
%€°09 00°8ZZ'8Z8- 0070 00 88E"LEB- 00°9T19'5999°'T- 00°919°999'T-
@IO4AdEd A0 AINNOD OTTLTIF
%e° LT 9% €9t~ 00°0 ¥ 9¢1- 00°00S- 00°00G-
SLISOdHd YMNVd NO LSHYHLNI TOTSTYd
%2°¢9 00 SET'T- 00°S%S- 00°598'1- 00°000"€- 00°000°€-
SHHA 1Y0dSS¥d €0ZV1¥
%9°0¢ ST %91 '¥- €T 62E- S8°Ge8'T- 00°000°9- 0070009~
STVIYHLVN AYUVYIEIT LSOT CO0Z¥Iv
31" vCe 16 CTIS'€E 227044~ 16 CTTIS’'09- 00°000'LZ- 00°000°'LE-

SANIJ 3 SHHA AJVIdIT TO0ZP1¥

aNNg DNILVIHJO XJVddIT1 101

1100 % FOANTIATY DNINIVHIY HONIAHY QLW TYALOV IONFASY LA TVALOV AHY WILSH JASIAZY AHY WILSH TUNIDINO

.:_L/\q.& _%Oﬂ rd/\/_ IT TZOZ ¥od

pnap3ATh Idoddd LEodnd ma«n-oa-mﬂmu_ stTRAOUL
T a ¥A ‘Kjunop prozpsd SZ3ST TZOZ/¥T/90

uonnes dis 3l e



xx STTRAON Auuap Aq palieisauan - I¥OJHE A0 QNI x=x
%' Cs TL 6€6 ‘%16~ 897 L86'6- 62 TIL'¥00'T- 00°TS9'616'1- 00" TS9°'6T6 T~
TYLOL dNVID
%0°00T LE"0 00°0 LEO- 00°0 00°0
N0 ADCTONHDEL AYVILITT ‘IVLOL

%0°00T LE"D 0070 LE"0- 000 00°0
SLISOdHT YMNVE NO ILSHIHINI TOTST¥

aNnNdg ADOTONHOAL AYVIdIT %071

%0'00T 08T 00°0 08°1- 000 00°'0
INAWADYIdEY HTIDTHHEA XIVNEIT TYIOL
20°00T 08T 00°0 08 T- 000 0070
SLISOdHEA MNVYLd NO LSHIEZINI TOTISTI¥
TIOD % INNIATY ONINIVHRIA IONTATY QIR TYAIOY HONFATY QLA TVQIOV AHY WILST QASIAZY AHY WILSH TYNIDINO
1T TZ0Z ¥od
pngpiATh IJ¥O4EY LIOHANT FILVA-OL-IVAX stTeacul
z d VA ‘L3unop paozped §Z:ST TZOZ/%1/90

uonncs dia Jajhky e

sunw %,




%€ ¥¢ 18'6%0'6T 00°0 PT°0ST'T 6170966 00°0T0‘6C 00°0T0‘6T
SOAS INTIVW ® JIVAHAE INHWIINDE O0EFIES

%0°00T 00°92C6- 0070 00°0 00°SZ6 00°0 00°0
SOAS LNIVKW ¥ JIV4dHY SANNOED 0CHTES
%e'6l 8L 6€8'¥ 00°0 00°0 ZZ 091’1 00°000°9 0070009
SOAS LNIVW ® ¥YIVdHd ODNIJTIINE OTPIES
%9°¥%1 S¥ T98°¢T 000 0L° €S 557 8¢V 00°000°€ 00°000°€
SHDIAYHAS TATIINS 0ZZTES
%30°¢C1T 0Z°0%¥ 00°0 08769 08°69 007008 00° 009
SHOIAYES DNISILIIAOVY 0ZTTIES
%1 6¢ 8%°06%'62 00°0 06°86¢ TS vE6 78T 00°SEZV '8¥ 00°SZV '8¥
HOIAYHS DNILIANOVY ¥ ONILNNODOY OTTITES
%0 00°00% € 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°00% ‘€ 00°00% ‘€
NOTLVSNIJWOD SYHENEYOM 0€ZTES
%6°G¥ 99°TeE 00°0 997 €9 ye 18¢ 007 €19 00" €19
ALITIIVSIA AI¥YHAH 0ZCT1CS
L1V 00°080°€ 00°0 00°0%% 00°00Z‘C 00°08Z°S 00°08Z'S
NOTINGIYINOD SONIAVS HLIVHH 06TTZS
%6°88 00°0S8¢ 00°0 00°0 00-000°‘2 00°0sZ'2 00°0S2°2T
HONVLSISSY NOILV¥DNAd 0LTTZS
%9°¢€V ¥9°86L'67F 00°0 S6°6€0°8 9€°0Z% ‘8¢ 00°61Z ‘88 00°6TZ ‘88
HONVINSNT HLIVHH 0STTIZS
L AR A Y 9Z €0T'S 00°0 6T TIVL VLT 6TL'E 00°€58°8 00°€58'8
HONVANSNI HAIT dNO¥D O0FTTCS
%$C°LE 8T 8LL'6E 000 OT"TIST'T Z8°208°S 00" TI8S'ST 00" T8S'ST
HIVOIAHW 0ETTZS
%T°LE 80°0T8'T¥ 00°0 96°TZ6 ‘¥ Z6°1T8 %2 00°2Z9°'99 00°2Z9'99
¥OIA 0ZTTZS
vy 8€°LL9°9T 0070 69°22% ‘T z9-9sz'el 00" ¥€6 ‘82 00" ¥€6°8C
SYA OTTTZS
%$0°00T oL €~ 00°0 00°0 oLt 00°0 00°0
LNOAVd HWIL dWOD OLTTTS
%0°00T 8T°GST'T- 00°0 0070 8T SST'T 00°0 00°0
LOOAVd HAVAT ADIS 09TTIS
%0°00T 2y 08%'9- 00°0 £E¥°T10T'2 Z¥ 0879 00°0 00°0
LOOAYd HAVAT TIVANNY 0STTTIS
%8°'4¢ 61°L28'59C 0070 £v-69L'82 T8 LIT'8¥%T 00°S¥6'ETY 00°S¥%6'€T1¥
HWIL LYVYd-SONINIVHE TTTITTS
%6 8¢ 6L €67 'E0F 00°0 06°LS0'TS TZ°ZZ1'LST 00°9T9°099 00°919°099

HANTL TINA-SDNINIVH OTTTIS

aNN4d DNILVIHJO AdVIHIT TO'T

aasn % LIDand JTIVIIVAY SHONVIGNODONH QIONIdXH QLA qaIANEdXd dLX LIDANE dASIAHY d0ddd¥ TYNIDIVUO

.T.M(K\»M (20T (.30 C/_ 1T 120z ¥od

0Z:8T TZT0Z/¥1/90

Pngap3liTh I¥O4dEY¥ ILIDANd FIVA-OL-¥VHA srTeACul
T 4a vA ‘Kjuno) paozped




%0° 00°00% 'L 0070 0070 00°0 00°00% L 00°00% L
HONVINSNI ALIHJO¥Yd 0EC1SS
%0° 00°STIV'C 0070 00°0 00°0 00°SIV’'E 00°STI%’'C
ONVANSNI ALITIIEVIT HTIHGOWOLNV 0€ZTSS
%0° 007009 00" 0 0070 00°0 00°009 00°009
HONVINSNI ALITIIEVIT TYIENAD 0TZTSS
%0°00T 0% €2~ 00°0 00°0 0¥" €€ 000 00°0
SHHd HDIAYHS ¥EHLO OLTTISS
%0°00T 25702~ 00°0 00°0 257 0¢ 00°0 00°0
SHHd ONIddIL TTIIAANYT 09TT1SS
%T°9 ¥ 6¢c6 00°0 85709 895709 00°000'T 00°000°T
SHHA MNVd 0STTSS
%0°00T 80°6€0'LZ- 00" 0 SO°LIV'S 80°6€0'LT 00°0 00°0
SHDUVHD HDOIAY¥YHAS LANJELNT €¥TT1SS
%0°00T LG 59¢€- 0070 v eL LS°S9¢ 00°0 00°0
YYINTTAD - WWODHTHL T¥TITSS
e € L8 ETE'LL 00°0 TE™LOS €T°9L9°E 00°000°08 00°000°08
SHNIT ONY'T - WWODHTHIL 0%TTSS
%0° 0V 9L €0L'8 00°0 FO TIST'T vz 96L'S 00°00S°%T 00°00S°%T
SHDOUVHD JIAMHS ¥ YHLYM 0€TTSS
STV 01" L6V 00°0 857 0L 06°25¢ 00°058 007048
SHDYVHD HOIAYHS dSNAHY 0CTTSS
%0°6¢ 6T 0ST'6S 00°0 €6°¥1I8'¥ I8 °6%8°LE 00°000°L6 00°000 L6
SHDYVYHD HOIAJHIS TVOIILOHTH OTTTISS
%0°00T 8L°2S- 00°0 0070 BL"CS 00°0 00°0
WIHY dWOD INHWNAOTAWHANN 0ZTIT¥S
%2°'8¢ 60°685°€ 00°0 89°L0Y% T6°0TI%'T 00°000°S 00°000°S
HOVATIN TAAVIL 0Z8TES
3070071 6% t6- 00°0 67 €6 6% €6 00°0 00°0
SNOIL¥DIATILIAD TYNOISSHAOEd 09LTES
%0° 00°00T°T 0070 00°0 00°0 00°00T‘T 00°00T‘T
NOILU¥DNQHE 3 HONHIHANOD 0€LTES
%0°0¢c 00°009- 00°0 00°0 00°00T'T 00°00s 00°009
SATHSYHIWHN NOILVZINVOIO OTLTES
%cce €0°T106 ‘%€ 000 L6°06¢€ L6865 ‘9T 007005 ‘TS 00°00S ‘TS
SHHA L¥0ddNs ¥ LNIVW HYYMLAOS 0¢91tS
%£°92 €ES°6E6°Y 00°0 00°0 L% 09L'T 00-00L"9 00°00L'9
LJ0ddNs ¥ LNIVIW HJIVMAIVH dWOD 0T9TES
30787 86°92E€'T 00°0 SE°¢€T¢C zot€ez 't 00°0SS'T 00°08S°C
IHOTHYA ANV HDVISOd O0TSTES
%e°81 LT LLL'T 00°0 €L°2EC9 €L7CC9 00°00%°€ 00°00% '€
SOAS LNIVW ¥ ¥YIVddd HATOIHHA 09%1¢S
%€°LT SL™L80'6T 00°0 00°0TE’Z SZ°CI6 0T 00°000'0¥% 00°000'0%
SHOIAYAS TVYIAOLSND O0%P¥TES
aasn % LADANE JTIVIIVAY STAONVIERODNH TIANEdXE aIR JIANIdXT ALX 13Dand qIFsSIASY dO¥dd¥ TYNIDINO

pngpalL16
4 d

ucinos dis 1814} 8

sunw =

Iyoddd 1EHand TIVA-OL-YVAX
YA ‘A3unop paozpeg

IT T20Z ¥od

stTeAOUL
0Z:ST TZOZ/¥T/90




%8 €2 ZS°T00‘8 000 05°68% 8% 86%°'C 00°00S°0T 00°00S ‘0T
STYIYAIV I¥INdod SAAd 0%ZZ9S
%€°0% G8°8%7 ‘T 000 €9 LEC ST TIS9'T 00°00T'% 00°00T'%
HLNOA SAAd 0€ZZ9S
%% °G¢ €7 985'% 00°0 $1°00¢2 LG E€TIS‘E 00°00T'L 00°00T'L
ITNAY SAAd 02229S
$L°LE 9% 8%0 ‘% 000 00°0 $S°TISV ‘¢ 00°005'9 00°005’'9
SY00g0IdNY 0T1ZZ94
%7 €€ ST %0C°€ 00°0 ST°909 S8°565'T 00°008'% 00°008'%
STIYDIQOI¥dd 0%TZ9S
%¢° 8¢ 95°069°ST 00°0 85°G1Z'2 ¥y ¥69°'6 00°58€°S¢ 00'58€°S2
STYTYAIVIN I¥INdOd SM00d 0E£TZ9S
%T°G€ L6°€T8 ST 00°0 ZET6%‘T £0°985'8 00°00%'%C 00°00%'¥%2
HLNOA SM00d 0ZTZ9S
%27 1% £€5°00€°ST 00°0 g6-9€£‘t L% 669'0T 00°000°'92 00° 000’92
1I1nd¥ SM009 0T1Z95§
%0°00T A ARN T 00°0 00°0 ZP TIT 00°'0 00°0
HITddNS HOIAJHS dO0d ANV dood 0€9T9S
$0°00T €L 6%T- 00°0 00°0 €L 6FT 000 00°0
TOYNDIS 0LGT9S
%6°S¢ ZV 0LE 00°0 00°0 85 6CT 00°005 00° 008
STVIYAIYN FTDIHAA 09ST9§
28 TL $8°069'T 00°0 99°L0S 91°60€’¥ 000009 00°000°9
STYIYALYN TYIAOLSND 0%ST9S
2% ve FO FET’'T 000 00°0 96°59¢€ 00°005'T 00°005'T
STYINELVIN LNAWIINOA 0EST9S
%L°ST €0°625°'¢ 00°0 000 L6 0L 00°000°€ 00°000°€
STYTIIILVIN ONIATIING OTST9S
%€°8T1 88°2%0°2C 00°0 00°0 217 LS¥ 00°005°‘2Z 00°00S°2
ANITOSYD 0ZZT9S
%6°CT S¥"90€'T 00°0 000 §5°€671 00°00S'T 00°005°'T
SHITAANS SNOANYTIHISIW 0STI9S
%0°007T 88°€2Z- 00°0 88°¢€Z 88° €T 00°0 00°0
TAAYIL-NON STVAWN ¥ do0d 0%TT9S
%8° LE ¥ G9GE‘ ¥ 000 L8 LBT'T S5 ¥H9’C 00°000'L 00°000'L
SHITAdNS ONILYIHdO JHALNJWOD 0€TT9S
%5°9¢€ 91°2Z%8 T 000 2T S2¢ ¥8°LSO0'T 00°006°T 00°006'€
SHAITAANS ADIAAO OETTISS
%0° 00°00Z°'¢€T 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°00Z'ET 00°00Z €T
STYLINZY INAWNIINODH ISYAT NON 0T6TGS
%0°00T LY %06 ‘¥~ 00°0 Z1°290'T LY %06'% 000 00°0
dINdd ADIAJ0-SINEWAYA HSYAT 0ZSTSS
$0° 00" LLY 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" LLY 00" LLY
HONVINSNI STYIDIAAO 2ITdNd 0921SS
agsn % 1Epand HIEVIIVAY  SHONVIEWOONT aaaNIFdxd aIN QIANAAXT QLA LEIDANT qISTATY do¥ddy TTYNIDIYO
TT 1202 ¥od
pnapliib I90ddad 1IDANE FIVA-OL-AVIX grTeaoul
e a vA ‘Ajunop paozped 0Z:ST TZO0Z/%T/90

13 1MW




xx STTRAON Auusp Aq polersus) - IJOdHA A0 NI

%0° 1V LL Z08'CET'T 000 SS VYL ‘9ET €2°878°'98L 00" TIS9°6T6'T 00" IS9°6T6°T
TYLOL ANVID

%0°00T 29°966 ‘1C- 000 Z8 LEE'T 29796612 00°0 0070
aNNd ADOTONHOHL AYVILIT TIVILOL
%0°00T 29 TLV¥'ST- 00°0 zZg-LEE’'ET 29 TLY'ST 00°0 00°0
INZWAINOHE ¥ALOAWOD O0TTI8S
%0°00T 00°525°9- 00°0 000 00°52S'9 00°0 00°0

SHUNIT ONVT - WWODHETAL O0%TTSS

aNN4d ADOTONHDHIL A¥VIIIT %071
%0°00T 95°890'¥€- 00°0 00°0 95°890 %€ 00°0 00°0
04 INTIVW SHILITIOVA ASWVIEIT TY.IOL

%0°00T 957890 'vE- 00°0 00°0 95890 %€ 00" 0 0070
SLNAWHAQIAWI DNIQIING 0ETTBS

dd INIVW SHILITIOVS A¥VAdIT 2071

31°8¢ $6°L98°88T'T 00°0 €L 90V 'FET S0°€8L ‘0€EL 00" TS9'6T6'T 00°TS9'6T6 T
ONO4 DNILVIHJO AJVIEIT TVIOL
%0° 00°9L% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 9L% 00" 9LY
SENTHOVI HDIAA0 0Z2S5T8S
%V 091 78 °T0E- 00°0 00’0 ¥8°T08 007005 00° 00§
SHINLXIA NV JINLINGNT JFOIJ440 0TST8S
% €L €6°9%0°6 000 86 667 LO"€0S'F 00° 0SS €T 00°0SS°ET
INHWAINOE ¥HILOAAWOD 0TTTI8S
%L°9¢ TL %56°S 00°0 0T 6T 88°SY¥V ‘€ 00°00%'6 00°00%'6
SHITdANS DNISSHOOYd AYVILIT 0TSC9S
$E€°LS 68°%96°T 00°0 £€9°6LE TT°S€9’€ 00°009°% 00°009'%
SHITAANS WYIDOYd AUVILIT 0Z%C9S
%0° 0070002 00°0 00" 0 00°0 00°000°C oo"oo0’e
SHOIAGHS WYHDO¥d AUVIHIT 0T¥¢SS
%L°09 98°0SL ‘PT 0070 L1°029°S YT 6%L'2T 00°00S'LE 00°005'LE
STVINHLYN TYLIDIA 02¢Z99
%9°¢ 00°002’'8 0070 0070 00°00¢ 00°00S’8 00°005'8

SNOTILJI¥DSHINS ANITNO 0T€Z9S

qasa % LE3DaNd FATHVIIVAY SHONVITNNONT qIANIJXI TIH JAANIIXT ALK LIPDANd dESIAZY d0ddd¥ TTYNIDIYO

TT TZ0Z ¥Oo4d

pnapa&1b I¥O4EY 1¥DANY TIVQ-OL-AVAX syTescul
5 p ¥A ‘Aaunop paozpes 0Z:ST TZ0Z/¥1/90

UGN (6s 41 ekl e °

siunw %,




